
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 
Chief Executive 

Phil Drury 
MCIAT, ACIOB 

 
Municipal Buildings 
Boston 
Lincolnshire   PE21 8QR 
Tel: 01205 314200 
Fax: 01205 364604 

 

 

 

13 March 2019 
 
TO MEMBERS OF THE CORPORATE AND COMMUNITY COMMITTEE 
 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE  

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY - CORPORATE & COMMUNITY COMMITTEE 
 
Dear Councillor 
 

You are invited to attend a meeting of the  
Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee on 

Thursday, 21st March, 2019 at 6.30 pm 
in the Committee Room, Municipal Buildings, West Street, Boston, PE21 8QR 

 
PHIL DRURY 
Chief Executive 
 
Membership: 
  

Chairman: Councillor Paul Gleeson 
Vice Chairman: Councillor Colin Brotherton 
 Councillors Tom Ashton, Richard Austin, Michael Brookes, 

Jonathan Noble, Elizabeth Ransome, Sue Ransome, Brian Rush, 
Judith Skinner and Stephen Woodliffe 
 

 
 

A G E N D A 
 

PART I – PRELIMINARIES 
 

A   MINUTES (Pages 1 - 12) 
 

 To sign and confirm the minutes of the last meeting, held on 7th February 2019. 
 

B   APOLOGIES  
 

 To receive apologies for absence and notification of substitutes (if any). 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 

C   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 

 To receive declarations of interests in respect of any item on the agenda. 
 

D   PUBLIC QUESTIONS  
 

 To answer any written questions received from members of the public no later than 
5 p.m. two clear working days prior to the meeting– for this meeting the deadline is 
5 p.m. on Monday 18th March 2019. 
 
 

PART II - AGENDA ITEMS 
 

1   JOINT HEALTH AND WELLBEING STRATEGY FOR LINCOLNSHIRE  
(Pages 13 - 56) 
 

 (A presentation by County Councillor Sue Woolley, Chairman of the Health and 
Wellbeing Board, and Derek Ward, Director of Public Health – Lincolnshire) 
 
Portfolio Holder: Councillor Paul Skinner  
 

2   WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 57 - 58) 
 

 (For Members to note/discuss the Committee’s current work programme) 
 
 
 

This meeting may be subject to being recorded. 
 
 
Notes: 
 
The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is Janette Collier, 
Senior Democratic Services Officer, Municipal Buildings, Boston, Tel. no: 01205 314227  
email: janette.collier@boston.gov.uk  
 
Council Members who are not able to attend the meeting should notify as soon as possible 
giving the name of the Council Member (if any) who will be attending the meeting as their 
substitute. 
 
Alternative Versions 
Should you wish to have the agenda or report in an alternative format such as larger text, 
Braille or a specific language, please contact Democratic Services on direct dial (01205) 
314226 
 
 

Emergency Procedures 
In the event of a fire alarm sounding all attendees are asked to leave the building 

via the nearest emergency exit and make their way to the Fire Assembly Point 
located in the car park at the rear of the Municipal Buildings. 

 



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY - CORPORATE & 
COMMUNITY COMMITTEE 
 

7 February 2019 

Present: Councillor Paul Gleeson (Chairman), Councillor Colin Brotherton (Vice-
Chairman), Councillors Tom Ashton, Richard Austin, Michael Brookes, Jonathan Noble, 
Sue Ransome, Judith Skinner and Stephen Woodliffe 
 
In attendance:  
 
Officers –  
Head of Regulatory Services, Chief Finance Officer and S151 Officer, Deputy Chief 
Executive (Monitoring Officer), Transformation Officer and Council Tax and Benefits 
Manager 
 
32   MINUTES 

 
With the agreement of the committee the Chairman signed the minutes of the previous 
committee meeting held on the 1 November 2018 
 
33   APOLOGIES 

 
Apologies for absence were table by Councillor Michael Brookes. 
Apologies for a late arrival were tabled by Councillor Ashton. 
 
34   PARISH COUNCIL AND RURAL ISOLATION PROJECT GROUP 

 
The Deputy Chief Executive introduced the report advising members that the project had 
been implemented as a result of a recommendation from the Rural Isolation Task and 
Finish Group. The group convened consisted of a varied mix of staff from across the 
Council and their remit had been to develop a group to work with parish councils to 
enhance community engagement.   The group further worked alongside other agencies 
to increase and develop ideas to help reduce rural isolation and loneliness. The project 
was still in its early stages and aimed to deliver a pilot that could be rolled out to 
parishes to reduce rural isolation and loneliness, and whilst the project group would 
conclude in April 2019, there was scope for some continued officer support to work 
alongside Lincolnshire County Council to deliver these outcomes. 
 
The Transformation Officer presented the report providing an overview of the workings 
of the group.  It had been agreed that greater communication between the Parish’s and 
the Council was needed with improved democratic engagement to allow delivery of 
services. 
Members were advised that the group had made good progress in building relationships 
with the parish councils and had delivered tangible outcomes.  Parish newsletters had 
been produced which had been well received with successful liaison and training 
meetings having been held: the Parish Council’s had requested regular meetings to 
allow them to be updated on legislation, best working practices and to hold further 
training sessions.   The Clerks in particular had requested further training having 
provided positive feedback on the initial training provided. 
 
The Group had recognised at that start of the project that rural isolation was a complex 
issue and required a diverse set of activities to be coordinated and delivered, in 

Page 1

Agenda Item A



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
7 February 2019 
 

conjunction with multiple partners and agencies. Many of the eleven recommendations 
of the Task and Finish group had been in relation to issues that the Borough Council 
could influence, but could not directly control.  It had become clear through the 
interaction with the parish councils, that by increasing their reach into their communities, 
it would be more likely to provide a more deliverable solution to reducing some of the 
impacts of rural isolation.  
 
The project group has sought to influence other partners by seeking to engage with 
other agencies to promote and highlight the impact of rural isolation. At an event 
organised by Lincolnshire County Council, “Join the Dots”, the County wanted to hear 
from organisations about ideas about how to address a wide range of community issues. 
The project group had pitched an idea of collaboration involving parish councils and how 
they could further engage with their communities and become more active to address 
the concerns around loneliness. The outcome of the debates at the event resulted in the 
County selecting the proposal of the project group which had been extremely well 
received. 
 
The project group, which concludes in April 2019, is now considering an exit strategy to 
ensure how the improvements made can be sustained and continue to grow once the 
project ends.   
 
Work had now begun on this collaborative project and although led by Lincolnshire 
County Council, had several other partners within the project. 
The pilot had been initially set up with two parish council’s to identify those that are 
rurally isolated and lonely within those communities.  The parishes had already 
commenced community consultation, using two different methods in order to ascertain 
which would generate the most responses. However, it should be noted, that each 
parish had a broad resident demographic and geography, which meant one size would 
not necessarily fit all:  as such consultation was likely to be bespoke to each parish.     
However, the outcomes of the initial pilot would assist the remaining sixteen Parish 
Councils who would be able to benefit from the lessons learnt.  
 
Members were advised that the Parish Council newsletters would be provided one a 
monthly basis.  The Parish Councils response to how the Borough Council 
communicated information highlighted a feeling that clerks were “bombarded” from a 
variety of sources, so much so that much information was not considered, digested or 
presented to the parish councils.   It was agreed to create a single ‘Parish Council 
Newsletter’ that would be sent on a monthly basis which would include sharing best 
practice; information for the community, including any grants that were available and 
guidance and support for the parish councils.   This had been very well received and the 
project group had continued to listen to the clerks as to what other information may be 
useful. Furthermore it had just been agreed that the newsletter would include a 
Monitoring Officer’s blog, information on updates to legislation, best practice from other 
parish councils and general information that is helpful to the community. 

 
When discussing Parish Council websites with the clerks, it became apparent that not all 
parish councils actually had a website.  There was significant debate at the initial Parish 
Liaison meeting about the relevance of Parish Notice Boards being the only source of 
information available for the community, but it also recognised that many residents did 
not know where the Notice Board was located within the village.   With an ever 
increasing reliance on technology and the part social media played in disseminating 

Page 2



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
7 February 2019 

 

information, it was agreed by the parish councils that they needed to improve the way 
information was published within the community.    All parish councils now had their own 
active website and the quality had improved with policies, community information and 
some were now setting up social media as well, particularly Facebook pages. This has 
increased access by the community to the work of the parish councils. 

 
Agreeing the benefits of the village magazines and newsletters, recent research had 
identified the majority of parish council areas had a local newsletter published 
independently of the parish council. Those publications were usually distributed to all 
residents in the parishes.  It was a valuable source of engagement that might not be 
used to its full potential in providing information to residents.  Having identified all the 
editors of the publications any community articles were now being sent to them. It 
remained the discretion of the editor as to whether to publish, but several were 
published on a regular basis.  The outcome was information which may not have been 
seen by residents was more likely to be accessed, examples included the  Red Cross 
connecting communities information, blackmail scam warning and Boston Community 
Transport 

 
The Monitoring Officer had identified a training gap in knowledge for the clerks and the 
parish councillors which was understandable given that training was accessed all over 
the County, meaning such training was not always local.  As such, the project group 
worked closely with the clerks to make sessions available that would be of interest and 
benefit to those attending.  14 parish councils had attended two liaison meetings in 2018 
with both external and internal speakers and the topics included:  houses in multiple 
occupation; data protection; LALC presentation and Community Lincs.   It was agreed 
that parish liaison meetings would be held every 6 months.  A clerks training evening 
would also be held every 6 months.  Training would also be provided for chairman and 
vice chairs. 

 
The project group has worked closely with the Lincolnshire Association of Local 
Councils (LALC) to ensure that training would be provided locally, using both the 
Municipal Buildings and Wyberton Village Hall. 

 
Concluding, the Monitoring Officer advised she was currently exploring the option of 
monthly Facebook Lives with the clerks as short 30 minute sessions to discuss any 
emerging issues, queries etc. that can be accessed by all as a further training tool. 

 
Committee comment and questioning followed which included: 
 

A member thanked the officers for the informative presentation and advised that the 
Fishtoft Parish Newsletter was now issued on line due to problems in distributing the 
hard copy in such a large area.  She agreed the importance of providing the news to 
make parishioners aware of events within their area, some which could impact of their 
lives. Noting the project had proved that there were more people on the internet than 
had been expected, the member voiced concern about those who did not have the skills 
to us it and asked if training sessions were available and if it would be possible to offer 
free up-skilling? 
 
An officer advised that there was training for people which was notified in benefits for 
training which was available for anybody:  the group could look at putting that 
information out within a newsletter with the permission of the people who provide it. 

Page 3



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
7 February 2019 
 

 
Stating he appreciated the work done by the group, a member referenced the initial task 
and finish group and their remit to look into rural isolation:  he stated he was intrigued by 
the figures from the 140 questionnaires which showed that there were very few people 
who felt they were isolated.  The member asked what percentages of people felt isolated 
and the officer advised that from the initial feedback, the analysis showed that out of 40 
questionnaires 27 people said never or rarely did the feel isolated.  The officer then 
stated that the group had possibly not reached the right target but asked members to be 
mindful that it was only a pilot scheme and confirmed that once all the analysis had been 
collated it would be passed to Lincolnshire County Council where decisions on taking it 
forward or not would be made. 
The Chairman advised at this point that the original task and finish group had been 
looking predominantly at hamlets and not large villages.  The remit had been locations 
which by their very nature were isolated. The two villages used within the pilot were 
robust, active villages which were not in remote areas. 
 
A member advised he had witnessed changes at Parish Councils reflecting the work of 
the group.  They were becoming more confident in how they performed during their 
meetings, having policies and procedures in place. The project needed to continue and 
improve further with the parish’s and build on what achieved so far.  Referring to the 
social media and posting on other sites, the member stated it was a good idea but was 
concerned that posts and comments would not be responded to on a regular basis. The 
Monitoring Officer advised that the Designer and Communications Assistant received 
notification as soon as posts came through via the Council’s site and she did check 
them regularly.    
 
Stating he felt it was good to see his colleagues on his local parish council getting so 
involved, a member confirmed that the work of the project group was being practised 
and that the majority of parish councillors were actively taking part in the changes being 
implemented.  However, the member asked committee to recognise that all people 
serving on the parish councils were volunteers.  He further stated that whilst all parish 
councils were different with different outlooks, it was encouraging that they were starting 
to take on board the advice and input of the group to take them forward in a more 
structured way.  All Parish Councils handled a lot of public money and it was right and 
proper they were achieving codes of practice and practicing good governance.  
Referencing social media the member stated he felt that all parish council website 
should provide contact details; details of meetings and agenda and minutes of their 
meetings. 
 
The Monitoring Officer agreed that the review was gently bringing the parish councils 
along and that some had differing qualities to others.  Currently the aspiration of the 
group was for all clerks to get accreditation although it was not a requirement.  
Transparency regulations applied to parish councils from December 2014 and it was 
now a requirement to publish minutes and agendas on line.   
 
The more confident the clerks became, the more they appreciated the legal roles and 
responsibilities of a clerk.  Since publication of the report the Committee for Standards in 
public life had issued its findings.  The report largely focused on parish council’s with 
much more interaction between the Monitoring Officer and the Parish Council’s in 
respect of training and guidance.   The work of the group over the last two years had 
resulted in the Monitoring Officer having a stronger positions to start having 

Page 4



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
7 February 2019 

 

conversations with clerks:  a meeting was being proposed with them in respect of the 
findings of the report.   
 
Whilst advising he recognised the work undertaken by the group, a member asked why 
he had to receive the report.  He stated he did not represent a parish and that he was a 
town-ward member with around 2000 members, which was more than some of the 
parishes who were represented by their own parish council, whereas he was a lone 
representative for his large ward.   He stated he felt the town wards were being short 
changed and that there was significant isolation and loneliness within the town without 
the need to look elsewhere and the council was not really tackling the major problems 
within the town.   BTAC which represented his and all the other town wards, was the 
member said, a small organisation compared to the parish council.  Reaffirming his 
comment that the project had indeed been beneficial to the parish councils, the member 
said that it further reminded residents of the town that they were disadvantaged by not 
having such support.    
The Chairman commented that a number of Councillors had been arguing for a full town 
parish for a number of years. 
 
Noting that he appreciated Boston had a distinct advantage with only 18 parishes, all of 
them he noted having a level of a population and precept which was hard to attain 
elsewhere, a member asked if similar projects were being undertaken by other Councils 
and if so, had there been a similar level of success.  The member then stated that the 
project could be used as an example to other authorities who may be looking to trial 
similar projects. 
The Monitoring Officer confirmed that many fellow M.O’s did not have,the level of 
support between M.O’s and the parish and offered nowhere near the level of support 
and attention that Boston did. 
Furthermore the Monitoring Officer noted that the role of Task & Finish group was to 
have examined a problem which then gave rise to recommendations, from which it 
enabled the impetus to look at this project. 
Not call Councils dealt with their Parish Councils in this way.  However the advantage to 
engage this way allowed them to have far more responsibilities in respect of their 
functions, as did BTAC. It was very important that they had that level of support. 
 
Summarising the Chairman asked if there was any possibility of sending out the parish 
contact details with the council tax bills.  He was advised that it would be too late this 
year to do such a thing and that some other authorities did have area pages on their 
own websites linking through to the District and also providing current planning 
applications and other information. 
 
The Chairman supported the comments of many of the committee in that the project had 
been carried out in a very positive manner with enthusiastic staff and excellent results.  
As the money had run out it was important try and proceed with the work alongside 
Lincolnshire County Council and to monitor the progress.  The item needed to be 
scheduled onto the work programme with a report to the June meeting which would also 
allow new councillors to be made aware of the project. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

It was agreed by the committee that  
 

Page 5



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
7 February 2019 
 

1. Cabinet be recommended support the continuation of working alongside 
Lincolnshire County Council on the rural isolation and loneliness project. 

2. Cabinet acknowledge the hard work and effectiveness of the group. 
3. A report be tabled back to the June 2019 meeting for the Corporate and 

Community Committee to allow consideration of the item further. 
4. It welcomes the continuation of many of the new links with the parish councils 

that have come from the working group. 
 
35   BUDGET SETTING REPORT AND MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 

2019/20 - 2023/24 
 

The Chief Finance Officer presented the draft budget setting report for 2019/20 and the 
medium term financial strategy through to 2023/24 to allow scrutiny to offer comment on 
the strategy as part of the consultation process to be fed back to Cabinet prior to the 
budget being approved at Full Council on 28 February 2019.  
Committee were referred to the forward by the portfolio holder which highlighted issues 
at national as well as local level for the Council.  The Executive Summary indicated a 
2.99% increase in the Council Tax proposed for the forthcoming year in line with the 
Governments Limit which took a Band D residence from £183.60 to £189.09.  Noting the 
Governments funding which appeared to be higher than the current year, the Chief 
Finance Officer advised that although he had been saying for a while that resources 
were reducing, the increase was in respect of two things:  as a result of getting more 
new homes bonus and secondly, with regard to policy decisions made by the 
Government and the release on business rates that the Council received grant for as 
against business rate income. 
Committee were referenced to further information within the report including savings 
requirements whereby the Chief Finance Officer advised he was pleased to note that 
that for 19/20 as required by statute, the Council had a balanced budget proposed. He 
further advised he would be putting a series of caviats with regard to the figures for 
coming years as at the current time the fair funding programme was in place. A 
spending review was expected in 2019 and also change to the business rates regime, 
neither outcomes were known and as such figures for 20/21 were best estimate only.  
In respect of business rate retention in 2019 / 20 the Council be part of a Lincolnshire 
pool to retain more money locally than they would otherwise.  In the current year the 
Council had been successful in being a pilot for 100% localisation.  The proposal going 
forward was a 75% retention but unfortunately Lincolnshire was unsuccessful.  The 
percentages did not necessarily mean that the Council received the amount of monies it 
collected.  The Government would put in place mechanisms to ensure regardless of the 
head line percentage, ultimately what the Council received would not change too much. 
 
Furthermore in paragraph 3.4 the commentary in respect of the appeals decision 
currently in discussions with the auditors looking at the appropriate ness of the level of 
provision that was held in a collection fund which was quite likely by the time the final 
figures were known it would move to the general fund as against being held in a 
collection fund.    The projections for Council tax assumed a 2% increase after 20/20 but 
it was subject to the annual criteria the Government set.  Members were reminded that 
of the council tax collected over 50% in Boston was passed onto the internal drainage 
boards as part of their levies. 
 
The Local Government Act 2003 introduced a requirement for the Chief Financial Officer 
to report on the robustness of the budget. The estimates had been prepared in a 

Page 6



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
7 February 2019 

 

prudent manner, although it was highlighted that there were a number of elements 
outside of the Council’s control. These had been identified within the report and would 
be mitigated through the budget monitoring and risk management processes of the 
Council. 
 
Having taken advantage of the Government’s four-year settlement announcement, the 
final year of which was 2019/20, the Council was entering the period beyond that in a 
reasonable position taking into account the new financial regime from 2020/21 following 
the upcoming Fairer Funding Review, the proposed introduction of 75% localisation of 
business rates and the revised funding formula, although the recent closure of one of 
the largest local businesses highlighted the difficulties facing the economy. 
 
Whilst the recent budget had set out the Government’s overall public sector spending 
figure for the coming years, the 2019 Spending Review would allocate resources 
between government departments, providing councils with a better understanding of the 
likely resources available in the medium term.  The changes meant that there would be 
additional risks to future funding levels which would require careful management.  
Therefore, the financial position modelled in the report on a current basis, could result in 
a rather different position by the end of the forecast period.  The new Council to be 
elected in May 2019 would need to be clear about its priorities and make resource 
allocation decisions accordingly.  
 
It was noted that there were significant areas of uncertainty in the coming years, 
including the impacts of the Brexit process, local government funding changes, and the 
2017 Business Rate revaluation outcomes locally. The Council had robust risk 
management processes in place and, alongside the quarterly performance reporting, 
would update the likely future impacts as the situation became clearer. 
 
In developing the Council’s budget proposals for 2019/20, it had managed inflationary 
pressures on operational costs and pressures on some areas of income collection.  
Areas where net budget reductions had been delivered to produce a balanced budget 
included Leisure Services and Planning. 
 
In order to deliver a balanced budget beyond 2019/20 and develop proposals for a 
secure medium term financial position the Council would seek innovative opportunities 
to achieve the annual budget reductions required without adversely affecting service 
delivery or compromising on its priorities.  Reports would be presented for deliberation 
and approval as projects were worked up, which would mean a refresh of the 
Transformation Programme once the future funding position became clearer. 
 
Summarising key items for ease of reference members were advised that: 
 
A rise in Council Tax of just below 3% with Band D council tax being £189.09; 
A balanced budget for 2019/20 after a reduction in Revenue Support Grant of almost 
£400,000, incorporating on-going savings of £312,000 from the Transformation 
Programme and an increase in expected fees from planning income and leisure; 
Minor changes to the figures in the draft budget as a result of more information 
becoming available, including £17,500 Brexit funding for the current year and next year; 
Projected budget gap of £0.9m by 2023/24 representing a significant challenge for the 
Council in maintaining service provision to the most vulnerable;  

Page 7



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
7 February 2019 
 

The government’s plan to localise 75% of business rates by 2020 would result in the 
council’s resources coming solely from council tax, business rates and fees and 
charges. This would have significant risks attached to it and there remained numerous 
uncertainties on the details within the proposal 
 
Movement of business rates appeal provision of £1.5m from the collection fund to the 
general fund to help support future years.  This had been identified as part of the annual 
review of the amount of provision required; 
In 2019/20 the Council would be part of a business rates pool across Lincolnshire 
following the unsuccessful bid for 75% localisation pilot status;  
New Homes Bonus tapering down from 2020 to nil in 2023/24; 
Boston Town Area Committee had met on 9 January and recommended the 
requirements for the Special Expense Account for 2019/20, being a precept of £680,303 
and a Band D council tax for the BTAC area of £74.07; 
to consider the requirements for the Special Expense Account for 2019/20; 
A sustainable and affordable capital programme had been formulated and the revenue 
consequences built into the revenue budget;  
The capital programme showed a diminishing programme in future years as resources 
became scarcer, although the Controlling Migration Fund monies had enabled 
investment in leisure facilities.  The programme recognised that funds would be required 
to renew the refuse fleet, the exact timing would be incorporated into future reports;  
Majority of fees and charges were not proposed to be increased for 2019/20;  
 
Committee comment and questioning followed which included: 
 
A member asked to what extent did the Council get sensible responses to the 
consultation and, over the previous years, had the responses had any real significant 
effect on the budget issues.  The Chief Finance Officer stated that the consultation 
responses had not necessarily been constructive nor had they offered solutions to some 
of the issues the Council faced.  They had always been taken into account but not 
actively influenced the process. 
 
Referencing Appendix 7 on page 109 a member questioned the comment in respect of 
training where it talked about requiring members who were responsible for treasury 
management, to receive adequate training, especially for members on Scrutiny.  He 
asked if that applied solely to the Audit and Governance committee of was it directed at 
members of all the Scrutiny committees.  He was advised that ostensibly it was more 
focused towards the Audit and Governance committee but in the briefing at the 
beginning of the process, it had been noted that treasury management was less of an 
issue at this Council and this particular scrutiny had not expressed an interest in this 
area, and as such efforts have been focused to Audit and Governance. Officers were 
always happy to pick up any requests for training.   The member further asked if it was a 
requirement for the responsible officer, because of this code, to ensure that members 
with responsibility for treasury management received adequate training and if so, surely 
as the data came to scrutiny meetings, all scrutiny members should be trained and the 
officer agreed, confirming it was best practice. 
 
Thanking the reporting officer for the very clear and concise document provided a 
member sought clarification on what the charges in table 6 for other small areas cover 
were for and was advised that they were for court costs on collection of council tax; 
business rates and general small items. 

Page 8



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
7 February 2019 

 
 

A member referenced point 2.9 on page 3 of the report and asked how much officer time 
was roughly allocated to external funding and how successful had the Council been at 
securing funding. 
The Chief Finance Officer stated it was difficult to be prescriptive with the amount of time 
spent because until Government or an external body released funds and gave an 
opportunity to bid, Officers could not react. There was no set aside time. When 
opportunities arose like the control and migration fund, on officer took on collation of 
pulling the bid together. In terms of that bid the Council got £1.4m, with another pending 
Government determination which is a little less.  Generally funds were little and often.  In 
terms of BTAC when issuing funds on play equipment, officer time is spent to get money 
in.  In current times the Council does not have the capacity nor are there the no. of bids 
we are likely to succeed on for officers to spend a huge amount of time on.  Members 
were asked to feel reassured that if the Council felt it had a very strong case, it would 
put sufficient resources together to do it.  The future high street funds were are looking 
at putting a team together as will every other district and town.   
The Chairman advised that what the Council did have was an officer who was available 
to NGO’s not for profits committees’ who had access to a piece of software that enabled 
them to search for grants.  It was concluded the Chairman, a facility the Council did not 
offer not publicise enough. 
 

Addressing the expected reduction in business rates of £780k a member questioned if it 
was attributed to the solely the closure of Fogarty or was it due to other factors and was 
advised that there were a number of factors involved one of which was the current 
trading environment and the difficulties with local businesses, particularly Fogarty’s.  
Another major issues in the current year had been part of the 100% pilot which allowed 
the Council to gain more than otherwise it would have. 
 
A member asked it was deemed necessary to implement a 2.9% council tax increase 
when the Council’s income had increased by £2494k  and the Chief Finance Officer 
advised that the 3% increase gave around £100k that was an on-going requirement in 
terms of needing spend.  Many of the funds that bring about that increase include the 
new homes bonus from where the Council envisaged one off monies.  From a Finance 
Officer perspective the more resources the authority had to help deliver the services it’s 
got,  at a time when resources were reducing, it gave it a better opportunity to be 
sustainable going forward. 
 
The Chairman asked for clarification on the amount of money that went direct to the 
Drainage Boards and was advised approximately £1.9m 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That members have considered the Draft Budget Setting Report and Medium Term 
Financial Strategy 2019/20 – 2023/24 and commented as above for referral to Cabinet. 
 
36   APPLICATION DATA AROUND THE LICENSING PROCESS 

 
The Head of Regulatory Services reminded committee of his initial approach to them in 
summer 2018 in respect of a Private Sector Housing Policy Framework, in particular in 
relation to the extension of mandatory house in multiple occupancy when a request was 
made by committee for an update. Members were reminded that a HMO was a property 

Page 9



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
7 February 2019 
 

occupied by three or more people unrelated people forming two of more households 
occupying the accommodation as their main or only place of residence and who share 
basic amenities including kitchens and bathrooms. 
 

Prior to 1 October 2019 properties which had three or more storeys and housed five or 
more people who formed two or more households sharing basic amenities had to have a 
HMO Licence. After 1st October 2019 All HMO’s which housed five or more people 
forming two or more households sharing basic amenities must be licensed regardless of 
the number of storeys of accommodation.  Failure to hold a licence or to have applied 
for a licence was a criminal offence.  Members’ were reminded that granting a licence 
was dependant on the applicant being a fit and proper person and the property meeting 
minimum standards of amenities including minimum room sizes, management 
standards, refuse disposal and fire precautions.   
 
The Policy Framework set out the minimum conditions to be applied by the Council to an 
HMO licence and the minimum amenity standards all the HMO’s needed to meet.   It 
also prescribed that HMO licence fees were payable both at the point of application, and 
if the application was granted, subject to a further payment prior to issue of the licence.  
The cost of the two part five year licence fee was set at £948 which needed to be paid 
on line in two parts:  £479 / £469.     
 
It had been anticipated that 500 applications over the five year period from October 
2018 would be submitted but to date only 102 had been made.  Of that amount 101 of 
the properties had been inspected with 78 full licenses having been issued and second 
part payments were expected from a further 22.  Of the 102 applications received only 1 
was likely to be refused. Committee were advised that £84.565.90 had been collected 
since the operation began.   
A significant number of landlords had opted to reduce the occupancy levels within their 
properties to 4 people which took them out of the scheme and a number of agencies, 
including Centrepoint had reported a spike in homeless single people at the beginning of 
October 2018.  
 
Summarising the Head of Regulatory Services advised that Boston now had 101 well 
managed and maintained HMO’s providing residents with safe, quality accommodation.  
He confirmed that Licensing Officer’s would be on the street with enforcement officers to 
check for compliance going door to door in areas more likely to have HMO’s.    The 
HMO register was on line and members were reminded that if anyone had a good 
reason to suspect that a residence was being used as an unlicensed HMO then the 
information should be passed to officer’s to allow them to look into the situation.  If it was 
indeed an un-licenced property then officers would consider if it warranted a civil penalty 
for failure to licence, or should the position be so bad with overriding public interest the 
Council would prosecute.   Members were advised that it would assist officers if they 
monitored areas within their own wards and if anything looked suspicious then to report 
it to the officers for further investigation. 
 
Committee commenting and questioning followed which included: 
 
In response to a members concerns in respect of the lack of Enforcement Officers and 
the use of Licensing Officers, the Head of Regulatory Services advised that the 
members concern had been correct up until 3 weeks earlier.  However, new staff had 
started two weeks ago.  The reasons for taking licensing officers’ onto the street was 

Page 10



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
7 February 2019 

 

due to the officer having expected that 400 out of the 500 would have already been 
undertaken.  
 
Stating he was really pleased to see the Council only issuing licences after carrying out 
an inspection and not beforehand, a member said he failed to understand why other 
authorities did not comply.  He further asked what monitoring positions were in place in 
respect of homes with only 4 people in them, stating he felt they too should be the kind 
of dwellings that were protected.  The Head of Regulatory Services stated the regulatory 
and enforcement powers were the same and as such prosecution and civil penalty 
regardless if it were licensable or not.  The only thing was no action could be taken 
simply because an HMO was not licensed.  In terms of management regulations, the 
housing health and safety rating system they were the same for all houses in multiple 
occupation.   
 
A member asked if his assumption that the vast majority of HMO’s were within the BTAC 
area of the borough, with relatively few in the Parish’s was correct and was advised that 
whilst he was correct, there were HMO’s in every single ward and parish of the Borough. 
 
Referencing the 1100 properties that would meet the licensing definition, a member 
asked if, bearing in mind only 102 had been done by October 2018, the anticipated 500 
applications would come in over a period of 5 years. 
The Head of Regulatory Services agreed that it was correct.  He advised that the 1100 
figure had been modelled by the Building Research Establishment using a whole range 
of data and statistical models:  he confirmed that to date it had not proved to be right as 
he would have expected 80% of the 500 to have applied before the 1st October.  Of the 
102 who did apply he stated there was a flurry with everything coming in nearly at the 
same time.   
 
A member further asked that having taken a financial hit as the revenue had been less 
than anticipated, how the deficit had been met. He was advised that it was all with new 
money, in as much as the fees had been set on resources, with all resources of staff 
paid for through the Controlling Migration Fund or already existed. 
   
The Chairman concluded by noting thanks for the clarity of the report and asked how 
many homes had been visited since the officers started and was advised that up until 
December 2018 252 properties had been actually visited with significantly more having 
been ‘knocked’ on.  Of the 250 a range of things had been found and up until the end of 
¼ 3 this year there were 38 properties which the Council had taken so form of action 
against.  Members were further advised that action was not only taken against HMO’s, 
but also against the private rental sector:  the officer furthermore confirmed that whilst 
they did not largely focus of owner occupier properties, action was taken if something 
was identified which was of imminent risk to the occupier. 
 
37   WORK PROGRAMME 

 
Committee were advised of an additional item to the work programme for the next 
scheduled meeting on the 21 March 2019 in that a presentation on Trading Standards 
would be provided by the Head of Regulatory Services. 
 
The first item on the agenda would be the Health and Wellbeing strategy. 

Page 11



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
7 February 2019 
 

As noted within the first item on the agenda a report to be scheduled onto the June 2019 
agenda for updates on the Parish Council Project Group. 
 
 
 
 
 

The Meeting Closed at 8.40 pm 
 

Page 12



Joint Health and
Wellbeing Strategy
for Lincolnshire
2018

Cllr Sue Woolley,
Executive Cllr
NHS Liaison &
Community
Engagement

Derek Ward,
Director of Public
Health
Lincolnshire County
Council

P
age 13

A
genda Item

 1



Background
• Health and Social Care Act 2012 requires the Local

Authority and each of its partner CCGs to produce a
Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy (JHWS) in order
to meet the needs identified in the Joint Strategic
Needs Assessment (JSNA).

• Purpose of the JHWS is to set out the strategic
commissioning direction for the next five years for all
organisations who commission services in order to
improve the health and wellbeing of the population
and reduce inequalities.

2

P
age 14



JHWS Development Timeline

3

P
age 15



JHWS Development Principles

4

1. Inclusive engagement that builds public and patient
confidence in the process.

2. A rational and transparent process ensuring that
competing needs are given a fair hearing.

3. Careful information management ensuring decisions are
based on robust information.

4. Decisions are based on clear value choices that are
ethical and underpinned by a sound evidence base.

5. Selection of an agreed prioritisation methodology that
takes into account the ranking/scoring of a range of
factors, or ‘criteria’.

P
age 16



Engagement Phase | Development

5

Apr – May 2017: Six workshops with member
organisations of the HWB

Jun – Jul 2017: Seven countywide public engagement
workshops and an online survey

Jul 2017: Health Scrutiny Committee Working
Group to obtain views and priorities

Aug 2017: Reference group with groups
representing people with protected
characteristics

Sep 2017: Feedback report to Health and
Wellbeing Board

P
age 17



6

P
age 18



JHWS | Aims

7

• A strong focus on prevention and early intervention;
• Ensure a focus on issues and needs which will require

partnership and collective action across a range of
organisations to deliver;

• Deliver transformational change through shifting the
health and care system towards preventing rather than
treating ill health and disability;

• Focus on tackling inequalities and equitable provision of
services that support and promote health and wellbeing.

P
age 19



Engagement Phase | Production

8

Sep – Dec 2017: Engagement with lead boards and
groups for each priority area

Dec 2017: Presentation to Health and Wellbeing
Board of emerging objectives

Jan – Mar 2018: Development of draft Delivery Plans
and governance arrangements

Mar 2018: Progress/Discussion report to Health
and Wellbeing Board

Apr 2018: Last stage engagement via online
survey

Jun 2018: Strategy signed off and published

P
age 20



JHWS | Themes

9

• Embed prevention across all health and care services;
• Develop joined up intelligence and research

opportunities to improve health and wellbeing;
• Support people working in Lincolnshire through

workplace wellbeing and support them to recognise
opportunities to work with others to support and improve
their health and wellbeing;

• Harness digital technology to provide people with tools
that will support prevention and self-care;

• Ensure safeguarding is embedded throughout the Joint
Health and Wellbeing Strategy.

P
age 21



10

P
age 22



Delivering the JHWS

11

• Align to JSNA as a continuous process with periodic
review;

• Ensure that a suitable group of stakeholders and partners
are brought together to tackle the issue of obesity across
all ages and communities in Lincolnshire;

• Priority Delivery Groups have developed delivery plans for
each priority area. These plans include the actions,
outcomes, timescales and responsibilities for delivering the
objectives;

• An agreed governance and accountability framework for
Priority Delivery Groups.

P
age 23



12

Boston Profile

P
age 24



13Source: ONS mid-year population estimates via NOMIS

Population Demographics
Estimated resident population, Mid-2017

Projected resident population, 2017 - 2032

• Boston has more female residents
than male.

• 20.9% of residents are aged 65
and over. This is lower than
Lincolnshire (23.2% aged 65+).

• By 2032 the population aged 65
and over will increase by 21.7% in
Boston.

Area Male Female Total

Boston 34,000 34,500 68,500

Lincolnshire 367,800 383,300 751,200

2017 2022 2027 2032 Change
2017-2032 2017 2022 2027 2032 Change

2017-2032
Age 0-15 12,800 13,400 13,200 12,600 -1.6% 128,600 134,700 134,200 130,600 1.6%

Aged 16-64 41,300 41,500 41,800 41,900 1.5% 448,600 447,300 447,900 444,700 -0.9%

Aged 65+ 14,300 15,100 16,100 17,400 21.7% 174,000 188,500 207,500 229,400 31.8%

All ages 68,400 70,000 71,100 71,900 5.1% 751,200 770,400 789,600 804,700 7.1%

LincolnshireBoston
Age group

P
age 25



14Source: ONS mid-year population estimates via NOMIS

Estimated resident population, Mid-2017

Population Pyramid

-6
.5

%

-6
.5

% -5
.0

%

-5
.3

%

-5
.6

%

-7
.1

%

-7
.1

%

-6
.5

%

-5
.9

%

-6
.5

%

-6
.8

%

-6
.2

%

-5
.6

%

-6
.2

%

-5
.3

% -3
.5

%

-2
.6

%

-2
.1

%

6.
3%

6.
0%

5.
2%

4.
9%

4.
9% 6.

3% 6.
6%

6.
0%

5.
7% 6.

6% 6.
9%

6.
3%

6.
0%

6.
0%

5.
5%

4.
0%

3.
2% 3.
4%

10%

8%

6%

4%

2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

%
 o

f t
ot

al
 p

op
ul

at
io

n

Age group

Boston male Boston female Lincolnshire male Lincolnshire female

P
age 26



15Source: DCLG, English Index of Deprivation 2015

Deprivation

P
age 27



16

Proportion of overall deprivation, 2015

Source: PHE, Local Health tool; DCLG, English Index of Deprivation 2015

Deprivation
43

.4
%

30
.7

%

29
.1

%

28
.7

%

28
.7

%

28
.3

%

26
.7

%

24
.5

%

21
.1

%

20
.7

%

19
.6

%

18
.0

%

15
.4

%

13
.3

%

8.
9%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

45%

50%

%
 o

f o
ve

ra
ll 

de
pr

iv
at

io
n

Electoral ward

Boston (24.4%) Lincolnshire (20.8%) England (21.8%)

P
age 28



• Between 2015 and 2017, premature mortality rates (under 75) from
cardiovascular disease are significantly worse than the regional and national
averages.

• 41.9% (176 out of 420) of all early deaths from cardiovascular disease are
considered preventable.

• Premature mortality rates from cardiovascular disease are higher for men
(130.6 per 100,000) than for women (56.7 per 100,000).

• Premature mortality rates from cardiovascular disease have reduced by
37.7% since 2001/03.

• In 2017/18, emergency hospital admissions due to falls for people over 65
were significantly better than the national average.

• In 2017/18, the rate of emergency admissions for hip fractures in people
aged 65-79 in Boston was significantly worse than the national average.

• In 2018, screening coverage for breast, cervical and bowel cancers were
significantly worse than the national average.

17Source: PHE, Health Profiles 2018, Public Health Outcomes Framework (PHOF)

Healthcare

P
age 29



• Life expectancy is 7.8 years lower for men and 3.2 years lower for women in
the most deprived areas of Boston compared to the least deprived.

• Average life expectancy in Boston is 78.6 years for men and 82.5 years for
women.

• Average female life expectancy in Boston is comparable to the national
average of 83.1 years, while average male life expectancy is significantly
worse than the national average of 79.5 years.

18Source: PHE, Health Profiles

Health Inequalities

P
age 30



19

Male and female life expectancy at birth, by electoral ward, 2011-2015

Source: PHE, Local Health tool

Health Inequalities

70

72

74

76

78

80

82

84

86

88

Ye
ar

s

Electoral ward

Female Male

P
age 31



20

• 14.5% of children (under 16s) live in low income families.
• 19.2% of mothers are known to smoke at the time of delivery.
• 48.9% of mothers breastfeed their babies in the first 48 hours after delivery.

This is worse than the national average of 74.5%.
• 59% of children under 5 are free from dental decay, which is worse than the

national average of 76.7%.
• Under-18 conceptions in Boston (29.8 per 1,000 females aged 15-17) are

significantly worse than the national rate of 18.8 per 1,000.
• The rate of hospital admissions caused by unintentional and deliberate

injuries is significantly better than the national rate.
• 49% of pupils achieved a standard pass (9-4) in GCSE English and Maths in

2017 and 31% achieved a strong pass (9-5).
• Pupil absence rates in Boston are worse than the national average.

Source: PHE, Health Profiles, Public Health Outcomes Framework

Child Health

P
age 32



21

• 20.2% of the population are reported to have a limiting long term illness or
disability and 6% report their general health to be ‘bad or very bad’.

• 29.8% of pensioners live alone, which is lower (better) than the national
average of 31.5%.

• 80.8% of working age adults are in employment, which is similar to the
England average of 75.2%.

• The gap in employment rates between those with a long-term condition and
the total population is comparable to the national gap.

• Smoking prevalence among adults in Boston (20.5%) is similar to the national
average of 14.9%.

• Between 2015 and 2017 the rate of people killed or seriously injured on roads
in Boston is worse than the national average.

• The rate of hospital admissions for alcohol related conditions is significantly
worse in Boston compared to the national average.

• Estimated diabetes diagnosis is better than the national average.

Source: PHE, Health Profiles, Public Health Outcomes Framework

Adult Health

P
age 33



22

Source: Hospital Episode Statistics (HES) Copyright © 2018, Re-used with the permission of The
Health and Social Care Information Centre. All rights reserved; PHE, Public Health Outcomes
Framework

• As of 2017, there were an estimated 6,428 adults (aged 18-64) with a mental
health condition. This is projected to increase by 3.5% to 6,654 by 2035.

• As of 2017, there were an estimated 1,241 older people (aged 65 and over)
with depression. This is projected to increase by 29.7% to 1,609 by 2035.

• In 2016/17, 134 people (198.3 per 100,000 population) were admitted to
hospital for mental health disorders.

• 3% of these admissions were children aged under 18.
• There were 81 emergency hospital admissions for self-harm in 2017/18,

which equates to 126.2 per 100,000 residents. This is lower (better) than the
national average.

• The mortality rate from mental health disorders in Boston is higher than both
the Lincolnshire and national averages.

• Between 2015 and 2017 there were 15 deaths from suicide, which equates to
8.2 deaths per 100,000 residents. This is similar to the national rate.

Mental Health

P
age 34



23
Source: Hospital Episode Statistics (HES) Copyright © 2018, Re-used with the permission of The
Health and Social Care Information Centre. All rights reserved

Hospital inpatient admissions for mental health disorders (all ages), 2016/17

Mental Health

260.7
217.6 204.4 200.2 198.3 191.9

154.5

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

Lincoln West
Lindsey

East Lindsey South
Holland

Boston South
Kesteven

North
Kesteven

Ad
m

is
si

on
s 

(D
SR

 p
er

 1
00

,0
00

)

District

Lincolnshire (202.4)

P
age 35



1,241
1,293

1,385

1,520

1,609

1,000

1,200

1,400

1,600

1,800

2017 2020 2025 2030 2035

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
po

pu
la

tio
n

Year

24Source: PANSI, POPPI

People aged 18-64 predicted to have a mental health problem, 2017 - 2035

People aged 65+ predicted to have depression, 2017 - 2035

Mental Health

6,428

6,510 6,535

6,604
6,654

6,200

6,400

6,600

6,800

2017 2020 2025 2030 2035

Es
tim

at
ed

 p
op

ul
at

io
n

Year

3.5%

29.7%

P
age 36



25
Source: ONS, Mortality Statistics via NOMIS

Mortality rate due to mental health disorders (all ages), 2017

Mental Health

118.2 115.8
96.8 96.3 95.7 90.9 83.1

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

North
Kesteven

Lincoln Boston South
Holland

West
Lindsey

South
Kesteven

East Lindsey

D
ea

th
s 

(D
SR

 p
er

 1
00

,0
00

)

District

Lincolnshire (97.6) England (91.2)

P
age 37



26Source: PHE, Public Health Outcomes Framework

Carers
• 2011 Census data shows there are 1,767 unpaid carers providing substantial

care (more than 50 hours a week) in Boston, which equates to 2.7% of the
total population.

• At electoral ward level, provision of substantial unpaid care varies from 4.2%
in Old Leake and Wrangle and Five Village Wards to 1.5% in Station Ward.

• In Boston, 5% of young people (aged 16-24) provide unpaid care, with 1.5%
providing 20 hours or more per week.

• As of 2011, 1.58% of children aged under 15 were providing unpaid care in
Boston, which is higher (worse) than the national average of 1.11%.

• Boston has over a fifth of residents (20.9%) aged over 65 in the UK.

P
age 38



27Source: PHE, Public Health Outcomes Framework

Provision of one hour or more of unpaid care per week, 2011

Carers

13.0
11.7 11.3 10.7 10.3 10.3 9.6

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

East Lindsey West Lindsey North
Kesteven

South
Holland

South
Kesteven

Boston Lincoln

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge

District

Lincolnshire (11.1%) England (10.2%)

P
age 39



28Source: PHE, Health Profiles, Public Health Outcomes Framework

Provision of 50 hours or more of unpaid care per week, 2011

Carers

4.1

2.9 2.8 2.8 2.7 2.6 2.2

0

1

2

3

4

5

East Lindsey South
Holland

North
Kesteven

West Lindsey Boston Lincoln South
Kesteven

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge

District

Lincolnshire (2.9%) England (2.4%)

P
age 40



29Source: PHE, Local Health tool

Provision of 50 hours or more of unpaid care per week, by electoral ward,
2011

Carers

4.2 4.2

3.4 3.4
2.8 2.8 2.8 2.7 2.6 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.1

1.7 1.5

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

3.0

3.5

4.0

4.5

Pr
op

or
tio

n 
(%

)

Electoral ward

Boston (2.7) Lincolnshire (2.9) England 2.4)

P
age 41



30Source: PHE, NCMP

• In 2017/18, 23.1% of Reception Year children were overweight or obese. This
is similar to the national average.

• Excess weight in Reception year children saw an increase between 2015/16
and 2016/17, however figures have fallen in 2017/18.

• By Year 6, 40.4% of children are overweight or obese. This is the highest in
Lincolnshire and worse than the national average.

• Excess weight in Year 6 children has increased from 35.3% in 2015/16.
• In 2016/17, 62.9% of adults aged over 18 in Boston were overweight or

obese, which is higher (worse) than the national average.
• In 2016/17, 57.4% of adults were meeting the recommended ‘5-a-day’ on a

usual day, which is similar to the national average.

Obesity

P
age 42



31Source: PHE, NCMP

Year 6 children (age 10/11) who are overweight or obese,
2017/18

Obesity

40.4
37.1 36.6 35.5

32.2 31.5 30.9

20

25

30

35

40

45

Boston Lincoln South
Holland

East Lindsey South
Kesteven

West Lindsey North
Kesteven

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge

District

Lincolnshire (34.5%) England (34.3%)

P
age 43



32Source: PHE, NCMP

Year 6 children (age 10/11) who are overweight or obese in Boston,
by electoral ward, 2013/14 - 2015/16

Obesity

43.5
41.4 40.8 39.9

37.7 37.5 37.4 37.3 37.2 37.1 37.1 36.8 35.9 35.8 35.5

25

30

35

40

45

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge

Electoral ward

Boston (37.1%) Lincolnshire (34.5%) England (34.3%)

P
age 44



33Source: PHE, Public Health Outcomes Framework

Adults (18+) who are overweight or obese, 2016/17

Obesity

67.8 65.9 64.6 63.9 62.9 62.0 60.7

50

55

60

65

70

75

East Lindsey North
Kesteven

South
Kesteven

South
Holland

Boston West Lindsey Lincoln

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge

District

Lincolnshire (63.7%) England (61.3%)

P
age 45



34Source: PHE, Health Profiles

Dementia diagnosis rate (age 65+), 2018

Dementia

• Dementia diagnosis in older people (aged 65 and over) in Boston is similar to the
national rate.

74.9
67.2 66.9 63.9 61.0 59.0 57.6

40

50

60

70

80

90

Lincoln West Lindsey Boston East Lindsey South
Holland

South
Kesteven

North
Kesteven

D
ia

gn
os

is
 ra

te
 (%

)

District

Lincolnshire (63.4%) England (67.5%)

P
age 46



35Source: ONS via NOMIS

Mortality rate due to dementia and Alzheimer’s, 2017

Dementia

• Between January and December 2017, there were 113.6 deaths (per 100,000
residents) due to dementia and Alzheimer’s. This is lower (better) than the
national rate.

155.3 151.5 146.0
122.2 114.0 113.6 108.4

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

Lincoln West
Lindsey

North
Kesteven

South
Kesteven

East Lindsey Boston South
Holland

D
ea

th
s 

(D
SR

 p
er

 1
00

,0
00

)

District

Lincolnshire (128.1) England (122.3)

P
age 47



36Source: PHE, Public Health Outcomes Framework

Physically active adults, 2016/17

• 57.6% of adults meet the recommended physical activity guidelines of at least
150 minutes of moderate intensity activity per week.

• 28.2% of adults are physically inactive in Boston (less than 30 minutes a week),
which is higher (worse) than the national average.

Physical Activity

67.9 66.4 65.9 65.1
59.4 57.6 57.5

40

45

50

55

60

65

70

75

North
Kesteven

Lincoln West Lindsey South
Kesteven

East Lindsey Boston South
Holland

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge

District

Lincolnshire (63.1%) England (66%)

P
age 48



37Source: PHE, Local Health tool; LGA Inform; ONS

• There are an estimated 28,000 households in Boston in 2018. This is projected to
increase to 30,000 by 2028 and 31,000 by 2038.

• In 2017/18, 1.9% of all dwellings were considered vacant, which is lower (better)
than the national average of 2.5%.

• As of May 2018, there are 4,385 people claiming Housing Benefit. 73.4% of these
claimants living in social rented accommodation and 26.6% live in private rented
accommodation.

• As of 2017, there were 2,365 workless households in Boston (12.6% of all
households).

• As of 2014, there were 3,196 households living in fuel poverty (11.4% of all
households).

• There were 1,865 overcrowded households in Boston (6.8% of all households).
• From the 2011 Census there were 3,794 people aged 65 and over living alone in

Boston (29.8% of the total population).

Housing and Health

P
age 49



38Source: PHE, Local Health tool

Households living in fuel poverty, 2014

Housing and Health
14

.7

14
.3

14
.3

13
.8

13
.2

12
.7

12
.6

12
.4

11
.4

11
.2

10
.5

8.
1

7.
9

7.
6

6.
7

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

Pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

(%
)

Electoral ward

Boston (11.4%) England (10.6%)

P
age 50



39Source: PHE, Local Health tool

Overcrowded households, 2011

Housing and Health
14

.5

14
.5

10
.9

10
.8

10
.1

8.
8

7.
2

4.
6

4.
0

3.
3

3.
0

2.
6

2.
5

1.
4

1.
3

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

Pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

(%
)

Electoral ward

Boston (6.8%) England (8.7%)

P
age 51



40Source: PHE, Local Health tool

Older people (aged 65 and over) who live alone, 2011

Housing and Health
39

.8

38
.9

38
.4

37
.0

33
.8

32
.1

31
.9

28
.3

26
.4

25
.8

25
.5

24
.3

23
.2

23
.0

21
.9

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

Pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 re
si

de
nt

s 
(%

)

Electoral ward

Boston (29.8%) England (31.5%)

P
age 52



41

Joint Health and Wellbeing
Strategy for Lincolnshire

2018
Lead officer: David Stacey

david.stacey@lincolnshire.gov.uk
01522 554017

P
age 53

mailto:David.stacey@lincolnshire.gov.uk


T
his page is intentionally left blank



Public Health England – Local Health 
Quick user guide 

For further information, contact the Public Health Intelligence Team at ph_intelligence@lincolnshire.gov.uk  

 

Accessing Local Health 

 Go to http://www.localhealth.org.uk. 

Please note this site will not open in 

Google Chrome so use Internet Explorer. 

 Click on the down arrow at the top to 

select geography view option above the 

map, select '2 – Electoral Ward (Best-fit 

Boundaries 2016)' 

 Click on the 'Search' drop down and type 

the Ward name. Select the relevant Ward 

from the list. 

 Tick the 'Select' box and select 'Zoom on 

this object' to show the Ward boundary. 

 
 
 
For Ward benchmark spine charts 

 Click on the              option in the top right 

hand corner. 

 Select the 'Summary' option to show the 

full spine chart for the selected Ward. 

 To save the spine chart, click on 'Export' 

then click. 

 Choose the folder location and name the 

file, then click 'Save'. 

 
For detailed Ward reports 

 With the Ward selected choose 'Reports' 

from the 'Information Selection' box. 

 Click on 'Detailed Reports' to generate 

the report.  

 To select a different theme, use the drop 

down box to switch between themes. 

 To print the full report, click on the 'Print 

all'         icon. 

 In the print selection box, select your 

chosen printer and select 'Print'. 

 To save the report as a PDF, select 

'Adobe PDF' from the print selection list. 

 

Page 55

http://www.localhealth.org.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



CORPORATE AND COMMUNITY COMMITTEE – WORK PROGRAMME 2018 
 

The Corporate Priorities relating to the Committee’s remit: CP2 People CP4 Public Service 
 

MEETING AGENDA ITEMS showing links to the Council’s Corporate Priorities  
[Standing items - work programme/learning & development - not shown] 

  

PRESENTED OR 
FACILITATED BY 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER 

    

1 AUG 
2018 

Sustainability and Transformation Plan Task and Finish Group - Update  
 

Phil Perry Councillor Skinner 

    

30 AUG 
2018 

Universal Credit – A presentation by Department for Work and Pensions  Paul Julian Councillor Spencer 

Alternative Delivery Arrangements  – Leisure, Culture and Sport  Phil Perry Councillor Rylott 
    

1 Nov 
2018 

Council Tax Support Scheme 2019/20 Paul Julian Councillor Spencer 

Alternative Delivery Arrangements – Leisure, Culture and Sport Phil Perry Councillor Rylott 
    

6 DEC 
2018 

 

MEETING CANCELLED 

    

7 FEB 
2019 

Parish Council and Rural Isolation Project Group Sharon Warner Councillor Cooper 

Budget Setting Report and Medium Term Financial Strategy 2019/20-
2023/24 

Paul Julian Councillor Spencer 

Application data around the Licensing process Andy Fisher Councillor Griggs 
    

21 MAR 
2019 

Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy for Lincolnshire  County Councillor 
Sue Woolley and 

Derek Ward 

Councillor Skinner 

    

 
  
 

THE COUNCIL’S CORPORATE PRIORITIES: 
 

 

CP1 Prosperity         CP2 People 
 

CP3 Place           CP4 Public 
Service 

P
age 57

A
genda Item

 2



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	A MINUTES
	1 JOINT HEALTH AND WELLBEING STRATEGY FOR LINCOLNSHIRE
	Accessing Local Health - User Guide

	2 WORK PROGRAMME

